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January 22, 2014 Regular Meeting 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 
Subject: ZBA13-018, 2575 South State Street  
 
 
Summary: Germain Motors is requesting three variances:  
  

1) A variance from Chapter 59(Off-Street Parking), Section 5:168:  A request to provide 
tandem parking spaces for car storage with a total maximum space depth of 48 feet. 
 

2) A variance from Chapter 59(Off-Street Parking), Section 5:168:  A request to provide 
aisle widths of 20 feet for the car storage area of the site, 22 feet is required. 
 

3) A variance from Chapter 59 (Off-Street Parking), Section 5:168: A request to provide a 
maximum of 40% Small Car parking spaces within the car sales area, a maximum of 30% 
is permitted.  

 
 

Background: 
 

The parcel is zoned M1A (Limited Light Industrial) and is located on the corner of South State 
Street and Oakbrook Drive.    There are three buildings on the site that are composed of auto 
showrooms and service functions for Porsche/Audi, Volkswagen and Honda.  The petitioner 
currently has a site plan under review for additions to two of three building as well as expansion 
of the parking areas on the site. Planning Commission recommended approval of the site plan 
contingent upon the approval of the variances requested. If the variances are approved, the 
project will proceed to the February 3rd City Council meeting for final action.      
 
The site currently contains 791 vehicle parking spaces, with an additional 234 parking spaces 
proposed for a total of 1,015 Parking spaces. The additional vehicle parking spaces are 
proposed along the southern half of the State Street frontage, along the Oakbrook frontage and 
in the rear car storage lots. The majority of parking spaces are used for vehicle display and 
storage. The vehicle storage area is located in the rear of the site and is composed of two large 
parking areas divided by an engineered vegetated slope and retaining wall. The petitioner is 
requesting three variances from Chapter 59 (Parking) in order to provide tandem parking, 
reduced aisle widths and exceed the maximum percentage (30%) of small car parking spaces 
within the car storage area. 
 
 
 
Chapter 59 (Off-Street Parking) Variance - Standards for Approval  
 
The Zoning Board of Appeals has all the power granted by State law and by Section 5:99, 
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Application of the Variance Power, from the City of Ann Arbor Zoning Ordinance and Chapter 
59, Section 5:566.  The following criteria shall apply: 
 

The Zoning Board of Appeals shall have authority to interpret this chapter and may 
 in specific cases and after public notice and hearings in accordance with Chapter 
 55 of this Code grant variances and exceptions to these requirements, providing 
 such variance or exception is in harmony with the general purpose and intent of 
 the requirements. The procedural requirements for appeals under Chapter 55 shall 
 be applicable to appeals under this chapter. 

The variances requested by the petitioner are the result of the use of the parcel for automotive 
dealerships. Due to the nature of the business, a larger number of vehicles are stored on the 
site for different periods of time. Chapter 59 does not have standards for car storage areas, and 
as a result, the access and dimensional requirements for standard parking lots are applied.  

One row of tandem parking will be provided along South State Street and an additional row of 
parking along Oakbrook. This area will be used as additional area for new vehicle display and 
will be constructed using porous pavers. This parking expansion will comply with required 
setbacks, and only requires the variance to permit the tandem arrangement.  

The Zoning Board of Appeals approved similar requests in 2005 in order to provide tandem 
parking along Oak Brook as well as in the rear storage area. These areas are being expanded 
under the proposed site plan, so additional approvals are required.   

 

The intent of Chapter 59 is to ensure all developments have safe and sufficient parking for 
customers and employees.  Vehicles stored in the affected areas will only be moved by 
employees, and the parking area for customers will not have stacked parking.  The use of 
tandem parking, reduced parking space and aisle dimensions in the storage area allows the 
petitioner to reduce the impervious surface on the site while still providing storage capacity for 
vehicles.   

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Matthew J.  Kowalski, AICP 
City Planner 








